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INTRODUCTION

the history of the American people is a growing realization

of the importance of local parish histories. The story of
the life of any congregation of Christian people of whatever
denominational name, if that congregation has existed for a
hundred years or more, will bring to light actions and experiences,
and modes of thought, which though seemingly insignificant in
their relationship to larger issues, yet serve well in throwing light
upon the common life of the whole period.

For this reason a history of Saint George’s Parish in Spotsyl-
vania County, over a period of two hundred and thirty years
will be welcomed by many students of Virginia history. That
in the later period since the War Between the States it becomes
more directly the history of the one mother-congregation of -
Saint George’s Church in Fredericksburg, rather than a continua-
tion of the history of the whole parish, covering half the county,
is but an illustration of the general trend towards centralization
and urbanization which has become one of the most striking
features of our present generation.

Old Saint George’s Parish has had a varied experience in the
near quarter of a millenium of its life. It was founded at first in
1714 to include a new group of German settlers, as a means of
releasing them from the payment of tithes to the Established
Church, and to enable them to have their own forms of worship
under their own ministers. Seven years later, under Governor
Alexander Spotswood, the first definite movement to check the
French advance of settlement and domination in the Ohio River
Valley was put into effect by the creation of a new county as the
first to extend into territory beyond the Blue Ridge Mountains.
This new country was named Spotsylvania County, and accord-
ing to general custom of the colonial period in Virginia a parish
of the Established Church was formed to cover the whole terri-
tory in order that as new settlers began to come into the new
territory they might have from the first some opportunity of
religious worship. In this case the little parish established for
some German people, having served its purpose, was enlarged to
cover the whole county. Thus it became the first religious organ-
ization beyond the Blue Ridge Mountains; and so Spotsylvania
County became the grandmother of all the counties formed in the
far southwest.

From the beginning Saint George’s Parish, and its home town
and city of Fredericksburg have taken part in all the life of
Virginia. The uncle of Patrick Henry, the orator of the Revolu-
tionary period, was one of its first ministers, and later the boy
George Washington, came from his home on the opposite side of
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" the River to attend school in Fredericksburg. During the Revolu-
tion the largest gun factory operated by the Commonwealth of
Virginia was in the town. Saint George’s Church and the parish
suffered all the experiences of devastation and prostration of the
Episcopal Church in the post-revolutionary period. Again, during
the War Between the States, when thé town was bombarded by
Federal forces, Saint George’s Church and her people suffered
along with the rest of the community. )

Life since that period of warfare has brought many changes,
and also its present day growth of population, and widening
opportunities of Christian service. Notable among other changes
agyounger sister congregation has grown up within the town,
as Trinity Church, to share with the Mother Church in the life
and work of today, as it shares also in all the past history of the

arish.
P Saint George’s Church has been fortunate in securing a
trained historical student to search out, assemble and evaluate
the facts of its past history: and all who are interested in accuracy
of historical statement will be grateful to Dr. Quenzel for the
care and devotion he has given to that work.

) o G. MacLaren Brypown, Historiographer,
Richmond, Virginia Diocese of Virginia
February, 1951.




